MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS OF HENRICO COUNTY, HELD IN THE COUNTY ADMINISTRATION BUILDING IN THE HENRICO COUNTY GOVERNMENT COMPLEX, ON THURSDAY, OCTOBER 18, 2001, AT 9:00 A.M., NOTICE HAVING BEEN PUBLISHED IN THE RICHMOND TIMES-DISPATCH ON OCTOBER 4 AND OCTOBER 11, 2001.

6

Members Present:

Daniel Balfour, Chairman
R. A. Wright, Vice-Chairman

Richard Kirkland, C.B.Z.A. Gene L. McKinney, C.P.C., C.B.Z.A.

James W. Nunnally

Also Present:

Benjamin Blankinship, Secretary Susan W. Blackburn, County Planner II Priscilla M. Parker, Recording Secretary

7 8

Mr. Balfour - Welcome, ladies and gentlemen, to the April meeting of the Board of Zoning Appeals. Before we get started, I'll have the Secretary read the rules.

9 10 11

12

13

14 15

16

17

18

19 20

21

2223

24

Mr. Blankinship -Good morning Mr. Chairman, Members of the Board, ladies and gentlemen. The rules for this meeting are as follows. The Secretary, myself, will call each case. Then the applicant will come to the podium to present the case. At that time I'll ask all those who intend to speak, in favor or opposition, to stand, and they will be sworn in. The applicants will then present their testimony. When the applicant is finished, anyone else will be given an opportunity to speak. After everyone has spoken, the applicant, and only the applicant, will be given the opportunity for rebuttal. After hearing the case, and asking questions, the Board will take the matter under advisement. They will render a decision at the end of the meeting. If you wish to know what their decision is, you may stay until the end of the meeting, or you may call the Planning Office at the end of the day. This meeting is being tape recorded, so we will ask everyone who speaks, to speak directly into the microphone on the podium, and to state your name for the record. Out in the fover, there are two binders, which have the staff reports for each case, including the conditions suggested by the staff. Chairman, we have one request for a withdrawal on the 9 o'clock agenda, A-140-2001.

252627

28

A -140-2001:

29 30 31 32 Mark W. Romers requests a variance from Section 24-94 of Chapter 24 of the County Code to change the use of an office building at 20 West Williamsburg Road (Tax Parcel 164-1-6-11A), zoned B-3C, Business District (Conditional) (Varina). The number of parking spaces required is not met. The applicant has 26 available parking spaces, where the Code requires 30 parking spaces. The applicant requests a variance of 4 parking spaces.

After an advertised public hearing and on a motion by Mr. Wright, seconded by Mr. McKinney, the Board **allowed withdrawal** of application **A-140-2001** for the above referenced variance. The Board granted withdrawal without prejudice because, based on an agreement to reserve unused building space, the County's parking requirements have now been met, and a variance is not required at this time.

41	Affirmative:	Balfour, Kirkland, McKinney, Nunnally, Wright	5
42	Negative:		0
43	Absent:		0

 A -134-2001: Jimmy F. and Deborah P. Cutright request a variance from Section 24-9 of Chapter 24 of the County Code to build a single-family house at 7500 Doran Road (Tax Parcel 227-A-5D), zoned A-1, Agricultural District (Varina). The public street frontage requirement is not met. The applicants have 0.00 feet public road frontage, where the Code requires 50 feet public road frontage. The applicants request a variance of 50 feet public road frontage.

Mr. Balfour - All who wish to speak on this case, please stand. Would you raise your right hand and be sworn in.

Mr. Blankinship - Do you swear the testimony is the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth so help you God?

Ms. Kickta - My name is Teresa Kickta, and I am speaking on behalf of my aunt and uncle, Jimmy and Deborah Cutright. They are requesting a 50-foot right of way. I just built a home down there in March, and I had to go through the variance process also.

64 Mr. Nunnally - They have a right of way into the property now, correct?

Ms. Kickta - Yes sir.

Mr. Balfour - Did every one get a copy of the new plot plan? Any other questions by Board Members? If not, then thank you.

After an advertised public hearing and on a motion by Mr. Nunnally, seconded by Mr. McKinney, the Board **granted** application **A-134-2001** for a variance to build a single-family house at 7500 Doran Road (Tax Parcel 227-A-5D). The Board granted the variance subject to the following conditions:

1. This variance applies only to the public street frontage requirement. All other applicable regulations of the County Code shall remain in force.

2. At the time of building permit application, the applicant shall submit the necessary information to the Department of Public Works to ensure compliance with the

requirements of the Chesapeake Bay Preservation Act and the code requirements for water quality standards.

3. At the time of building permit application, the owner shall demonstrate that the parcel created by this division has been conveyed to members of the immediate family, and the subdivision ordinance has not been circumvented.

4. Approval of this request does not imply that a building permit will be issued. Building permit approval is contingent on Health Department requirements, including, but not limited to, soil evaluation for a septic drainfield and reserve area, and approval of a well location.

5. The applicant shall present proof with the building permit application that a legal access to the property has been obtained. The owners of the property, and their heirs or assigns, shall accept responsibility for maintaining access to the property until such a time as the access is improved to County standards and accepted into the County road system for maintenance.

99 Affirmative: Balfour, Kirkland, McKinney, Nunnally, Wright
 100 Negative:
 101 Absent:
 5
 0

The Board granted this request, as it found from the evidence presented that, due to the unique circumstances of the subject property, strict application of the County Code would produce undue hardship not generally shared by other properties in the area, and authorizing this variance will neither cause a substantial detriment to adjacent property nor materially impair the purpose of the zoning regulations.

A -135-2001: Graham J. and Margaret A. Wilson request a variance from Section 24-95 of Chapter 24 of the County Code to build a sunroom at 1225 Tree Ridge Road (Olde Colony Estates) (Tax Parcel 213-3-H-4), zoned R-3, One-family Residence District (Varina). The rear yard setback is not met. The applicants have 30 feet rear yard setback, where the Code requires 40 feet rear yard setback. The applicants request a variance of 10 feet rear yard setback.

Mr. Balfour - All who wish to speak on this case, please stand. Would you raise your right hand and be sworn in.

Mr. Blankinship - Do you swear the testimony that you are about to give is the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth, so help you God?

123 Ms. Wilson - I do.

125 Mr. Blankinship - State your name please and present your case.

127 128 129	Ms. Wilson - rear yard setback to build	Margaret A. Wilson. I am requesting a variance of 10 feet a sunroom onto an existing deck on my home.
130 131	Mr. Nunnally -	What size is your deck?
132 133	Ms. Wilson -	It is 10 x 20 feet.
134 135	Mr. Nunnally -	You want to enclose half of it for a sunroom?
136 137	Ms. Wilson -	Yes sir. I think that would be a 10 x 12 foot size room.
138 139	Mr. McKinney -	The staff report says the deck is 12 x 20 feet.
140 141	Ms. Wilson -	Let me ask my husband; I am not sure of the dimensions.
142 143	Mr. Balfour -	If you will raise your right hand and be sworn in.
144 145 146	Mr. Blankinship - truth, the whole truth, and	Do you swear the testimony that you are about to give is the nothing but the truth, so help you God?
147 148 149	Mr. Wilson - that is the section that we	I do. My name is Graham Wilson. The deck is 10 x 12 feet; want the sunroom to enclose.
150 151	Mr. Blankinship -	The whole deck is 12 x 20 feet?
152 153	Mr. Wilson -	The deck is 10 x 20 feet.
154 155 156	Mr. Blankinship - deck left.	You are enclosing 10 x 12 and you will have an 8 x 10 foot
157 158	Mr. Wilson -	It will be 10 feet out from the house and 12 feet wide.
159 160 161	Mr. Blankinship - feet wide.	And what is uncovered will be 10 feet from the house and 8
162 163 164	Mr. Wilson - length of the house is 12	From the house, the deck extends 10 feet and along the feet.
165 166	Mr. McKinney -	Did the engineer or architect draw this on the plan?
167 168	Ms. Wilson -	I think the engineer actually wrote that information down.
169 170	Mr. McKinney - deck will be 10 x 12 feet.	If that is true, the enclosed part will be 10 x 12 feet, and the Which means the existing deck is 12×20 feet now.
171 172	Ms. Wilson -	That is correct.

173			
174	Mr. McKinney -	The reason I bring it up, is once it is done,	if Building
175	Inspections comes out and the measurement does not match the approved plans,		
176	will have to get ano	ther variance.	
177	_		
178	Mr. Balfour -	Can you and Mr. Blankinship get the measureme	nts correct?
179			
180	Ms. Wilson -	Yes sir.	
181			
182	Mr. Balfour -	Are there any other questions of the Board? Tha	nk you.
183			-
184	After an advertised	public hearing and on a motion by Mr. Nunnally, secon	nded by Mr.
185	Wright, the Board	granted your application A-135-2001 for a variance	to build a
186	sunroom at 1225 T	ree Ridge Road (Olde Colony Estates) (Tax Parcel 213-	3-H-4. The
187	Board granted the v	ariance subject to the following condition:	
188			
189	1. Only the im	provements shown on the plan filed with the applicati	ion may be
190	constructed pursua	nt to this approval. No substantial changes or additions t	o the layout
191	may be made with	out the approval of the Board of Zoning Appeals. An	y additional
192	improvements shall	comply with the applicable regulations of the County Coo	de.
193			
194	Affirmative:	Balfour, Kirkland, McKinney, Nunnally, Wright	5
195	Negative:		0
196	Absent:		0
197			
198	_	this request, as it found from the evidence presented tha	
199	•	ces of the subject property, strict application of the C	•
200	•	ue hardship not generally shared by other properties in th	
201	•	iance will neither cause a substantial detriment to adjace	ent property
202	nor materially impai	ir the purpose of the zoning regulations.	
203			_
204	A -136-2001:	David and Gwendolyn Washington request a var	
205		Section 24-94 of Chapter 24 of the County Code	
206		screened porch at 203 Celona Drive (Three Fountains	, ,
207		Parcel 74-5-B-15), zoned R-2A, One-family Reside	
208		(Fairfield). The rear yard setback is not met. The app	
209		33 feet rear yard setback, where the Code requires	
210		yard setback. The applicants request a variance of	12 feet rear
211		yard setback.	
212	M D K	AH 1	107
213	Mr. Balfour -	All who wish to speak on this case, please stand.	Would you
214	raise your right han	d and be sworn in.	
215			

216217218

Mr. Blankinship - Do you swear the testimony that you are about to give is the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth, so help you God?

219	Mr. Washington -	l do.
220	_	
221	Mr. Balfour -	State your name please, and then present your case.
222		
223	Mr. Washington -	David Washington. We are planning to build a sunroom on
224	the back of our home. We	e need 12 more feet to meet our setback.
225		
226	Mr. Balfour -	Your dimensions are 12 x 21 feet.
227		
228	Mr. Washington -	Yes sir, that is correct.
229	_	
230	Mr. Balfour -	Are there any other questions of Mr. Washington.
231		
232	Mr. McKinney -	Mr. Washington, is this to be built on top of what you already
233	have?	
234		
235	Mr. Washington -	Yes it is.
236		
237	Mr. McKinney -	Underneath it, I presume that you will use that for storage?
238		
239	Mr. Washington -	Yes it would be used for storage.
240		
241	Mr. McKinney -	Ok, thank you.
242		
243	Mr. Balfour -	Any other questions? Thank you.
244		

After an advertised public hearing and on a motion by Mr. McKinney, seconded by Mr. Wright, the Board **granted** application **A-136-2001** for a variance to build a screened porch at 203 Celona Drive (Three Fountains North) (Tax Parcel 74-5-B-15). The Board granted the variance subject to the following condition:

1. Only the improvements shown on the plan filed with the application may be constructed pursuant to this approval. No substantial changes or additions to the layout may be made without the approval of the Board of Zoning Appeals. Any additional improvements shall comply with the applicable regulations of the County Code.

255 Affirmative: Balfour, Kirkland, McKinney, Nunnally, Wright
5
256 Negative:
257 Absent:
0

The Board granted this request, as it found from the evidence presented that, due to the unique circumstances of the subject property, strict application of the County Code would produce undue hardship not generally shared by other properties in the area, and authorizing this variance will neither cause a substantial detriment to adjacent property nor materially impair the purpose of the zoning regulations.

265 266 267 268 269 270 271 272 273	A -138-2001:	Dr. Richard H. Villa requests a variance from Section 24-94 of Chapter 24 of the County Code to build a screened porch over the existing deck at 12420 Lynwood Drive (Bradford Landing at Wyndham) (Tax Parcel 4-28-A-62), zoned R-3C, One-family Residence District (Conditional) (Three Chopt). The rear yard setback is not met. The applicant has 35.9 feet rear yard setback, where the Code requires 40 feet rear yard setback. The applicant requests a variance of 4.1 feet rear yard setback.
274 275 276	Mr. Balfour - raise your right han	All who wish to speak on this case, please stand. Would you and be sworn in.
277 278 279	Mr. Blankinship - truth, the whole trut	Do you swear the testimony that you are about to give is the , and nothing but the truth, so help you God?
280 281	Mr. Grieves -	I do.
282 283	Mr. Balfour -	Please state your name and then present your case.
284 285 286 287 288 289 290	caused the house to road goes through to places the house fa	Jeffery Grieves representing Dr. Villa. When the house was wood Drive was constructed as a temporary turnaround, which be moved back 7 feet farther than the required setback. When the o the next property, the land will revert back to the owner. This still ther back on the lot than needs to be. We only need 4.1 feet in the on the existing deck.
290 291 292	Mr. Balfour -	Are you just putting the porch right on top of the deck?
292 293 294	Mr. Grieves -	Yes sir, which is 14 x 19 feet.
295 296	Mr. Balfour -	Any questions of Mr. Grieves?
297 298	Mr. Wright -	Is this on the rear of your house or the side?
299 300	Mr. Grieves -	It is on the rear of the house.
301 302	Mr. Wright -	The house fronts on Lynwood?
303 304	Mr. Grieves -	Yes sir.
305 306	Mr. Wright - They face the other	And the houses behind you are on Bradford Landing Court? way. So this would be to rear of those houses?
307 308	Mr. Grieves -	Yes sir. The houses face rear to rear.
309 310	Mr. Wright -	Thank you.

311
312 Mr. Balfour - Any other questions? Thank you.
313
314 After an advertised public hearing and on a motion by Mr.

After an advertised public hearing and on a motion by Mr. Wright, seconded by Mr. McKinney, the Board **granted** application **A-138-2001** for a variance to build a screened porch over the existing deck at 12420 Lynwood Drive (Bradford Landing at Wyndham) (Tax Parcel 4-28-A-62). The Board granted the variance subject to the following conditions:

1. Only the improvements shown on the plan filed with the application may be constructed pursuant to this approval. No substantial changes or additions to the layout may be made without the approval of the Board of Zoning Appeals. Any additional improvements shall comply with the applicable regulations of the County Code.

325 2. A landscape plan must be submitted with the building permit illustrating the 326 screening provided for the adjacent neighbors.

328 Affirmative: Balfour, Kirkland, McKinney, Nunnally, Wright 5
329 Negative: 0
330 Absent: 0

The Board granted this request, as it found from the evidence presented that, due to the unique circumstances of the subject property, strict application of the County Code would produce undue hardship not generally shared by other properties in the area, and authorizing this variance will neither cause a substantial detriment to adjacent property nor materially impair the purpose of the zoning regulations.

A -139-2001:

John Mardigian requests a variance from Section 24-94 of Chapter 24 of the County Code to build an addition at 7338 Hermitage Road (Quarles Heights) (Tax Parcel 72-12-B-3), zoned R-3, One-family Residence District (Brookland). The rear yard setback is not met. The applicant has 19 feet rear yard setback, where the Code requires 25 feet rear yard setback. The applicant requests a variance of 6 feet rear yard setback.

Mr. Balfour - All who wish to speak on this case, please stand. Would you raise your right hand and be sworn in.

Mr. Blankinship - Do you swear the testimony that you are about to give is the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth, so help you God?

Mr. Mardigian - I do. My name is John Mardigian, and I am requesting a variance of 6 feet to add a family room onto the rear of my house.

Mr. Balfour - So you are asking for a 6-foot rear yard setback?

357	Mr. Mardigian -	Yes sir.
358	- -	
359	Mr. Balfour -	Is there a patio in the back yard where this is going?
360 361	Mr. Mardigian -	It is coming off the back of the white portion of the house.
362	Ğ	
363	Mr. Balfour -	So this would be flush with the house?
364 365	Mr. Mardigian -	Yes sir.
366	Wir. Wardigian -	1 63 311.
367	Mr. Nunnally -	It will be 16 x 16?
368		
369	Mr. Mardigian -	Yes sir.
370		
371	Mr. Balfour -	Are there any other questions for Mr. Mardigian? . Thank
372	you. Next speaker.	
373 374	Mr. Bartolotta -	My name is Garard Partoletta. I would just like point out that
375		My name is Gerard Bartolotta. I would just like point out that and the way the house sits, the back corner of the house is
376		it sits now. And because of the angle of the property, any
377		requires that variance. Mr. Mardigian wanted to maintain a 16
378	x 16 foot addition.	requires that variatioe. Wr. Wardigian wanted to maintain a 10
379	X 10 100t dddillom	
380	Mr. Balfour -	It makes it flush with the house.
381		
382	Mr. Bartolotta -	Not on the back portion, but on the side.
383		
384	Mr. Balfour -	Thank you.
385		
386		c hearing and on a motion by Mr. Kirkland, seconded by Mr.
387		ted application A-139-2001 for a variance to build an addition
388		(Quarles Heights) (Tax Parcel 72-12-B-3). The Board granted
389 390	the variance subject to the	s following condition.
390 391	1. Only the improver	ments shown on the plan filed with the application may be
392		nis approval. No substantial changes or additions to the layout
J , _	TELION GOLD & PAI CAGIN TO II	in application to the layout

constructed pursuant to this approval. No substantial changes or additions to the layout may be made without the approval of the Board of Zoning Appeals. Any additional improvements shall comply with the applicable regulations of the County Code.

394 395

393

396	Affirmative:	Balfour, Kirkland, McKinney, Nunnally, Wright	5
	Negative:	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	0
398	Absent:		0

399 400

401

402

The Board granted this request, as it found from the evidence presented that, due to the unique circumstances of the subject property, strict application of the County Code would produce undue hardship not generally shared by other properties in the area, and authorizing this variance will neither cause a substantial detriment to adjacent property nor materially impair the purpose of the zoning regulations.

UP- 26-2001: Misty M. Maiden requests a conditional use permit pursuant to Section 24-12(e) of Chapter 24 of the County Code to keep more than three pets at 5015 Dollard Drive (Kildare Annex) (Tax Parcel 93-4-A-5), zoned R-3, One-family Residence District (Brookland).

411 Mr. Balfour - All who wish to speak on this case, please stand. Would you 412 raise your right hand and be sworn in.

Mr. Blankinship - Do you swear the testimony that you are about to give is the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth, so help you God?

Ms. Maiden - I do. I want to request a conditional use permit for a kennel license. I currently have 5 dogs and 2 cats at my house. One is a Doberman; the other 4 are Miniature Pinschers. They stay in the house. Two of the Miniature Pinschers belong to my mother; they will be going back to Tennessee in November. I own three dogs and 2 cats. Before I got the third dog in April, I called Planning and Zoning and asked them if the cats were included in the 3-animal limit in Henrico. They told me they weren't included, so I got the third dog. Later on, I had a planning and zoning officer come out and give me the pamphlet that says it is 3 animals total.

I am planning on buying a home in Goochland for my mother. She is moving to Goochland next summer. And I am looking for a house in Amelia. I will be renting this house out next year. This would only be for a year. I want to get into the new house before school starts. I will be moving out to the country.

431 Mr. McKinney - So Ms. Maiden, what are you saying, if you are granted a permit, you'd be satisfied if it were only granted for one year?

434 Ms. Maiden - Yes sir.

436 Mr. McKinney - And by that time, you would have eliminated all the animals 437 from this property or be within the scope of the law?

439 Ms. Maiden - Yes sir. I have one of the dogs advertised for sale, the cats 440 are old and neutered, and the Doberman is 7 years old.

442 Mr. Balfour - Have you read these letters that we have received?

444 Ms. Maiden - No sir.

446 Mr. Balfour - The first letter, the one on top, mentioned something about 447 run off from your yard to their yard, since you are up hill from them. I would like for you 448 to take a minute to read the letter and respond to it.

449		
450	Mr. McKinnev -	When we get these letters at the last minute, I think we
451	•	either pass this by and let the parties concerned read the
452		ard come back to it. It is not right to give us this letter the
453		d try to read it amongst all the other stuff we have to read.
454	morning or the meeting and	a try to road it amongot all the other stain we have to road.
455	Mr. Balfour -	Do you folks have time to stay a few minutes? Ms. Maiden,
456		ers from either of your neighbors? Is that right?
457	,	
458	Mr. McKinney -	We can read the letter on our break.
459	,	
460	Mr. Balfour -	I was asking at the suggestion of Mr. McKinney, since we
461		rs before, we could pass this case by and take it up in about
462	45 minutes, if you have tim	·
463	is immutes, in your near our	
464	Ms. Maiden -	I have to go back to work.
465	ora.a.a.	That's to go saok to work
466	Mr. Balfour -	Why don't you read the letter while we hear from the
467	Singletons, and we will pro	
468	onigiotorio, and we will pre	occu.
469	Mr. Singleton -	My name is Harvey Singleton. I am opposed to this request
470	J	y fence where she has her kennel, it backs up to my privacy
471		dog when she first came there. I had a little fence along the
472		out. So I put up the privacy fence. Since then, she has built
473		fence and using it as a side to her kennel. I don't want the
474	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	ng onto my garden. There will be the smell, and it will be
475	noisier if she gets a lot mo	
476	noisier if she gets a lot mo	te dogs.
477	Mr. Balfour -	Is the kennel a dirt floor or a cement slab?
	WII. Balloul -	is the kernier a diff floor of a cernefit stab!
478 479	Mr. Singloton	Right now it is just dirt.
	Mr. Singleton -	Right how it is just unt.
480	Mr. Dolfour	So you are caying it drains right under the fence
481	Mr. Balfour -	So you are saying it drains right under the fence.
482	Mr. Cinalatan	It will drain right through it. It is just a fance with call treated
483	Mr. Singleton -	It will drain right through it. It is just a fence with salt treated
484	boards standing straight up	o, so there cracks between them.
485	Mar IZ'd I d	M. O'coletes - Bish aids of second line is the effect
486	Mr. Kirkland -	Mr. Singleton, which side of property line is the privacy
487	fence?	
488		
489	Mr. Singleton -	It is on my side.
490		
491	Mr. Kirkland -	And her chain link abuts your fence, using your fence as her
492	4 th side?	
493		
494	Mr. Singleton -	Yes sir.

495 496 497 498	Mr. Balfour - dogs at all, or do you wan	What are you asking, that you don't want her to have the ther to improve
499 500 501 502	•	I would rather not have the dogs at all, because it will be a lore noise. And the way the drainage is, it would drain right off kept perfectly clean.
503 504	Mr. Balfour -	You did hear her say she will be leaving in about 9 months.
505 506 507	•	I understand what she wants to do, and I don't blame her. and the drain coming down on me.
508 509 510 511 512 513	permit would only be for	If we put a condition on the case that said that she would of her pen out of her own fence. And that the approval for this 1 year, and that was it, and we would have the County check to make sure there wasn't any run off or smell, and make her
514 515	Mr. Singleton -	I still wouldn't want it there as a kennel, I think it is too close.
516 517	Mr. Balfour -	You realize she can have 3 dogs now?
518 519 520	•	Yes. I have nothing against animals. I used to have bird had more than that, and I had a pen on my own property. I or the smell.
521 522 523	Mr. Balfour -	Any other questions? Thank you.
524 525 526	Ms. Singleton - either.	I am Mary Singleton. I really don't want the dogs there
527 528	Mr. Balfour -	You do understand that she can have 3 dogs.
529 530 531 532 533	their yard. When I go to h	Yes. I knew she had the original dog. I am scared of dogs d. I had my husband put up the privacy fence to keep them in hang clothes on the line, I can smell the odor of the droppings. all to accommodate a lot of animals.
534 535	Mr. Balfour -	How big are these lots?
536 537	Mr. Singleton -	60 x 150 feet.
538 539 540	Ms. Singleton - the road 40 feet, the back	That is not very big. And with the house sitting back from yard is not big.

541 Mr. McKinney -Ms. Singleton, do you walk in the neighborhood? 542 543 Ms. Singleton -I used to. I have bad knees now, so I can't. 544 545 Mr. McKinney -Do these dogs get out and run free? 546 547 Ms. Singleton -I have not seen them out of the fence. I did hear her call the 548 small dogs that had gotten out and run down the street. They did not get into my yard. 549 550 Mr. Balfour -You live in the rear of this house. Ms. Lightfoot lives in the 551 house facing Libby Avenue, and Mr. Eagle's house faces Libby Avenue also. So all 552 three of the residences are behind her. Any other questions for Ms. Singleton? Thank 553 you. Ms. Maiden, have you had a chance to read the letters? 554 555 Ms. Maiden -Where is the reference to Ms. Langford? I did build a 556 privacy fence to address the problem of the dogs getting out. I just built confinement 557 cages to keep them confined when I out cooking on the grill or something. They have 558 yet to be in those. So I don't know how there can be run-off when they have never been 559 in there. The Miniature Pinschers stay in the house except to go outside to do their business. The Doberman runs the backyard. They don't stay in the kennels, so there 560 would be no run-off. I have an 11-year-old son who brings his friends over to play in the 561 562 back yard, so I do keep it clean. Basically, when I take the 2 dogs back to my mother's in November, I will be at Henrico's 3-dog limit. So I am really getting the use permit for 563 564 my two cats. 565 566 Mr. Balfour -Do the cats stay inside? 567 568 Ms. Maiden -They are outside and inside cats. They are neutered, and in the winter they stay in the house most of the time. They are 7 and 4 years old. 569 570 571 Mr. Balfour -Can you put some sort of barrier below the bottom of the 572 fence in the rear to prevent the drainage into the other yards? 573 574 Ms. Maiden -The dogs do not stay in the kennels, so there is no run-off; 575 the only run-off would be water from a rainstorm. 576 577 Mr. Balfour -All three of these people complained about the odors, so 578 there must be something back there that is concentrated. Any other questions of Ms. 579 Maiden? 580 581 Mr. McKinney -Do you put straw in the cages that they are in? 582 583 Ms. Maiden -There is concrete in the Miniature Pinschers' pen, because 584 they dig and climb out of stuff. The rest of them are grass that always needs to be cut

because they are never in there.

585

587	Mr. McKinney -	Do you get their waste up, or do you leave it in	the back
588	yard?		
589	·		
590	Ms. Maiden -	I get it up.	
591			
592	Mr. McKinney -	Every day?	
593	•	•	
594	Ms. Maiden -	I go out there once a week. I clean up after the D	oberman
595	every day, and the	mini-pins once a week.	
596	•	·	
597	Mr. Balfour -	Any other questions of Ms. Maiden? Thank you.	
598			
599	After an advertised	I public hearing and on a motion by Mr. Kirkland, seconde	d by Mr.
600	McKinney, the Boa	ard granted application UP-26-2001 for a conditional use	permit to
601		ee pets at 5015 Dollard Drive (Kildare Annex) (Tax Parcel 9	
602	-	the use permit subject to the following conditions:	,
603	J	. ,	
604	1. This approva	al is only for the three dogs and two cats owned by the	property
605	owner. The approv	ral is not for the boarding or breeding of dogs at any time.	
606			
607	2. In addition to	the five animals listed in condition #1, the applicant may	keep two
608	dogs owned by fam	nily members until November 30, 2001.	•
609			
610	3. No new or r	replacement animals may be added, so that the number of	animals
611	will be reduced by r	natural means to three, as allowed in a residential district.	
612			
613	4. The applicar	nt must maintain the property so that noise and odors are co	ntrolled.
614			
615		s shall be confined to the applicants property, and may	/ not be
616	attached to any priv	acy fence belonging to the neighbors.	
617			
618		shall expire on October 18, 2002, after which time the new	umber of
619	animals on the prop	perty shall not exceed three.	
620			
621	Affirmative:	Balfour, Kirkland, McKinney, Nunnally, Wright	5
622	Negative:		0
623	Absent:		0
624			
625	•	the request because it found the proposed use will be in su	
626	accordance with the	e general purpose and objectives of Chapter 24 of the Count	y Code.
627			
628	A -141-2001:	Janece C. Bibby requests a variance from Section 24	` '
629		Chapter 24 of the County Code to build a gazebo at 94	•
630		Road (Hungary Acres) (Tax Parcel 52-5-B-7), zoned R	
631		family Residence District (Fairfield). The accessory	
632		location requirement is not met. The applicant wishes to	o build a

gazebo, without a 10-foot breezeway connection, in the side yard, where the Code permits accessory structures only in the rear yard.
The applicant requests a variance in accessory structure location requirement.

637 638

Mr. Balfour - All who wish to speak on this case, please stand. Would you raise your right hand and be sworn in.

639 640

Mr. Blankinship - Do you swear the testimony that you are about to give is the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth, so help you God?

643

644 Ms. Bibby - I do.

645 646

Mr. Balfour - Would you state your name and then your case.

647 648

649

650

651

652 653

654

655

656

657

658

659

660

661

Ms. Bibby -My name is Janece Bibby, and I would like to build a gazebo in my side yard. This property is a lot that was left over once the development of the surrounding subdivisions were put in. This lot was originally a portion of the subdivision in the rear. We really couldn't think of any other way of using this land than to put a garden on it. We realize that we could put the gazebo in the back yard that would change the yard. We understand the reasoning for requiring accessory structures in the rear yard in a conventional neighborhood, but there is no passerby traffic and it is at the end of a street. It is actually screened from everyone else and the lady who lives across the street is looking forward to seeing it. In fact she is going to help plant the garden. The other neighbors gave signatures also. The breezeway that would have to be constructed to connect the house and the gazebo would have to go under the electric wires that feed the house. The power company said it could be done, but it would be a safety factor for the contractor. We understand all of this, but we feel that in doing the gazebo and the flower garden, it will enhance the neighborhood and optimize the use of the property.

662663664

665

666 667 Mr. Blankinship - They do not want to build the breezeway. In order to put the accessory structure in the side yard, it has to be attached to the house. One of their options is to build a breezeway, 40 feet from the house to the gazebo going across the property line, power line and driveway. In our discussion with her, it did not seem like a reasonable solution.

668 669

670 Mr. Balfour - Any questions of Ms. Bibby?

671

672 Mr. Wright - Do you have any pictures of this gazebo?

673

674 Ms. Bibby - No sir. I did not want to develop a plan before we obtained 675 permission to build it. We had in mind a regular gazebo with screened sides, and we 676 would plant flower gardens around it.

677

678 Mr. Wright - Is that lot wooded?

679			
680 681	Ms. Bibby - an acre of land that we als	This particular area is not wooded, but to the right o so own, and that is wooded. The houses in Kennedy	
582 583	would be screened from the	·	Otation
684 685	Mr. Wright - gazebo will be located?	Do you have any idea how far back from the stre	eet this
686 687 688	Ms. Bibby -	There is no frontage on this lot.	
589 590 591	Mr. Kirkland - brick?	Back to the materials, is this going to be a Cedar gas	zebo or
692 693 694	Ms. Bibby - wood. It would be octagor	The bottom part would be brick, and the sides wonal in shape.	ould be
695 696	Mr. Balfour -	Any other questions?	
697 698	Mr. Wright -	I see this diagram shows 20 feet from the property line	e.
599 700	Ms. Bibby - house and the gazebo site	There is a sewer line through that property, between, and we need to stay outside the easement.	een our
701 702 703	Mr. Balfour -	How large are you going to make it, 12 feet wide?	
704 705	Ms. Bibby -	That sounds good.	
706 707	Mr. Balfour -	Any other questions of Ms. Bibby? Thank you.	
708 709 710 711 712	Nunnally, the Board grant	hearing and on a motion by Mr. McKinney, seconded ed application A-141-2001 for a variance to build a gaary Acres) (Tax Parcel 52-5-B-7). The Board granowing conditions:	zebo at
713 714 715 716 717	constructed pursuant to the may be made without the	nents shown on the plan filed with the application relies approval. No substantial changes or additions to the approval of the Board of Zoning Appeals. Any acceptance applicable regulations of the County Code.	e layout
718 719	2. The structure shall	not exceed 15 feet in length, width or diameter.	
720 721 722 723	Affirmative: Balfou Negative: Absent:	ır, Kirkland, McKinney, Nunnally, Wright	5 0 0

The Board granted this request, as it found from the evidence presented that, due to the unique circumstances of the subject property, strict application of the County Code would produce undue hardship not generally shared by other properties in the area, and authorizing this variance will neither cause a substantial detriment to adjacent property nor materially impair the purpose of the zoning regulations.

729 730

731

732 733

734 735

724

725

726 727

728

A -142-2001: Teresa Marie Truda requests a variance from Section 24-41(e) of Chapter 24 of the County Code to build a deck at 9407 Grassmount Lane (Lakeland Townes) (Tax Parcel 50-21-Y-2), zoned RTHC, Residential Townhouse District (Conditional) (Brookland). The rear yard setback is not met. The applicant has 14.57 feet rear yard setback, where the Code requires 20 feet rear yard setback. The applicant requests a variance of 5.43 feet rear yard setback.

736737738

Mr. Balfour - All who wish to speak on this case, please stand. Would you raise your right hand and be sworn in.

739 740

Mr. Blankinship - Do you swear the testimony that you are about to give is the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth, so help you God?

743

744 Ms. Truda - I do.

745

746 Mr. Balfour - Would you state your name please?

747

748 Ms. Truda - Theresa Marie Truda. I moved into my new townhouse 749 about a month ago, and I had prior permission to extend my rear deck 5.43 feet. I am 750 requesting a variance for that amount. This is so I can keep my deck. It extends to my 751 shed.

752

753 Mr. Balfour - It says the County approved the building permit.

754

755 Ms. Truda - Yes sir, and the day before closing, they said it was done in error.

757

758 Mr. McKinney - All that land behind you is in wetlands, correct?

759

760 Ms. Truda - Yes sir.

761

762 Mr. Wright - This deck doesn't extend from the ground very high. It is 763 kind of hard to call it a deck.

764

765 Mr. Truda - Yes sir.

766

767 Mr. Balfour - Any other questions of Ms. Truda. Thank you.

After an advertised public hearing and on a motion by Mr. Kirkland, seconded by Mr. Wright, the Board **granted** application **A-142-2001** for a variance to build a deck at 9407 Grassmount Lane (Lakeland Townes) (Tax Parcel 50-21-Y-2). The Board granted the variance subject to the following condition:

1. Only the improvements shown on the plan filed with the application may be constructed pursuant to this approval. No substantial changes or additions to the layout may be made without the approval of the Board of Zoning Appeals. Any additional improvements shall comply with the applicable regulations of the County Code.

Affirmative:	Balfour, Kirkland, McKinney, Nunnally, Wright	5
Negative:		0
Absent:		0

The Board granted this request, as it found from the evidence presented that, due to the unique circumstances of the subject property, strict application of the County Code would produce undue hardship not generally shared by other properties in the area, and authorizing this variance will neither cause a substantial detriment to adjacent property nor materially impair the purpose of the zoning regulations.

A -143-2001:

Rhonda Tyler requests a variance from Section 24-9 of Chapter 24 of the County Code to build a single family house at 1110 Oakland Road (Tax Parcel 180-A-90), zoned R-3, One-family Residence District (Varina). The public street frontage requirement is not met. The applicant has 0 feet public street frontage, where the Code requires 50 feet public street frontage. The applicant requests a variance of 50 feet public street frontage.

Mr. Balfour - All who wish to speak on this case, please stand. Would you raise your right hand and be sworn in.

Mr. Blankinship - Do you swear the testimony that you are about to give is the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth, so help you God?

Mr. Hodge - Yes I do. Previously we had been issued a variance on this piece of property. Mr. Madison's estate has decided to retain the 30 feet of right-of-way and not deed it to Ms. Tyler.

Mr. Balfour - Have you read the conditions of the case?

809 Mr. Hodge - Yes.

811 Mr. Balfour - Are there any questions? Thank you.

After an advertised public hearing and on a motion by Mr. Nunnally, seconded by Mr. Kirkland, the Board **granted** application **A-143-2001** for a variance to build a single

family house at 1110 Oakland Road (Tax Parcel 180-A-90). The Board granted the variance subject to the following conditions:

1. This variance applies only to the public street frontage requirement. All other applicable regulations of the County Code shall remain in force.

2. At the time of building permit application, the applicant shall submit the necessary information to the Department of Public Works to ensure compliance with the requirements of the Chesapeake Bay Preservation Act and the code requirements for water quality standards.

3. Approval of this request does not imply that a building permit will be issued. Building permit approval is contingent on Health Department requirements, including, but not limited to, soil evaluation for a septic drainfield and reserve area, and approval of a well location.

4. The applicant shall present proof with the building permit application that a legal access to the property has been obtained.

5. The owners of the property, and their heirs or assigns, shall accept responsibility for maintaining access to the property until such a time as the access is improved to County standards and accepted into the County road system for maintenance.

838 Affirmative: Balfour, Kirkland, McKinney, Nunnally, Wright 5 839 Negative: 0 840 Absent: 0

The Board granted this request, as it found from the evidence presented that, due to the unique circumstances of the subject property, strict application of the County Code would produce undue hardship not generally shared by other properties in the area, and authorizing this variance will neither cause a substantial detriment to adjacent property nor materially impair the purpose of the zoning regulations.

A -144-2001:

 Richard Atack Construction requests a variance from Sections 24-95(b) and 24-9 of Chapter 24 of the County Code to build a single family dwelling at 5413 Edgefield Street (Chamberlayne Estates) (Tax Parcel 85-1-6-3), zoned R-4, One-family Residence District (Fairfield). The lot width requirement, public street frontage requirement, and total lot area requirement are not met. The applicant has 5,069 square feet lot area, 40 feet lot width and 40 feet public street frontage, where the Code requires 6,000 square feet lot area, 50 feet lot width and 50 feet public street frontage. The applicant requests variances of 931 square feet lot area, 10 feet lot width and 10 feet public street frontage.

October 18, 2001

860 Mr. Balfour -All who wish to speak on this case, please stand. Would you 861 raise your right hand and be sworn in. 862 863 Mr. Blankinship -Do you swear the testimony that you are about to give is the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth, so help you God? 864 865 866 Mr. Walker -I do. My name is Eric Walker; I am representing Richard 867 Atack Construction and building a single family dwelling at 5413 Edgefield Street. You have a row of 4 undeveloped lots on Edgefield, and they are all approximately 40 feet 868 869 wide. I am requesting a variance to build on these lots. There are some lots in this 870 subdivision that are approximately 65 feet wide and others that are 40 feet wide. They 871 are located on Edgefield and Tamiani. 872 873 Mr. Balfour -The width of the lots vary from 40 feet to 65 feet? 874 875 Mr. Walker -Yes. The requirement for this lot is 50 feet of width, and I 876 am just trying to make this lot buildable. 877 878 Mr. Wright -Have you attempted to acquire the property on either side of 879 this lot? 880 881 Mr. Walker -Yes sir. I attempted to acquire all 5 lots. The 2 adjacent lots 882 do not have clear titles, so the property is not transferring. 883 884 Mr. Balfour -Do you already own this lot or is it contingent on receiving 885 the variance? 886 887 Mr. Walker -It is contingent on getting the variance. 888 889 Mr. McKinney -Is this part of the redistricting? Is this now part of Brookland 890 District? He has a survey that states this property is in the Brookland District; it is in fact 891 in the Fairfield District. 892 893 Mr. Balfour -Any other questions? 894 895 Ms. McCowen -My name is Gloria McCowen. I live at 519 North Road. The 896 897

rear of my property abuts this lot. My concern is that we just received this notice vesterday, even though it was posted marked on October 2. I am able to get away from my job to come to this meeting. I polled my neighborhood, and several people had not received this notice. That is one of my concerns.

899 900 901

898

Mr. Balfour -Do we get returned receipts on these notices?

902

903 Mr. Blankinship -No we do not. When the county sends the notices, it is first 904 class. When the applicant sends the notice, it must be certified.

906 907 908	Mr. Balfour - required to send the notic	Why are the standards different and the County is not es certified?
909 910	Mr. Blankinship -	The Code doesn't require it.
911 912 913	Mr. Kirkland - to make sure these notice	Because of all the mail problems in the world today, we need as get mailed in plenty of time.
914 915	Mr. Blankinship -	She said it was postmarked the 2 nd of October.
916 917	Mr. Balfour -	You say you have neighbors that did not receive the notice?
918 919	Ms. McCowen -	Yes sir.
920 921	Mr. Blankinship -	They may not all have been adjoining property owners.
922 923 924	Ms. McCowen - Tree.	Yes, one is. His property is located at Edgefield and Hickory
925 926 927	Mr. McKinney - hear the case. Can you c	If he hasn't gotten proper notice, I don't see how we can heck the file?
928 929 930	Mr. Blankinship - sent properly, I think the r	I don't think there is an allegation that the notices weren't nail may have lost them.
931 932 933	Mr. Balfour - the case, and I didn't get a	But if the landowner came in and said, "I didn't know about a chance to speak to the Board," that would not look good.
934 935 936	Ms. McCowen - abundance	My other concern because in that area there is an
937 938 939 940	Mr. Balfour - defer this request because chance to speak about this	Before we proceed, does the Board agree that we should e of the notices? I don't want anyone saying they did not get a s case.
941 942	Mr. Kirkland -	That would give them 30 more days to receive their notices.
943 944 945	Mr. McKinney - all the requirements have	Do you have a problem with that Mr. Walker, to make sure been satisfied?
946 947 948 949 950 951	not received this notice, I are aware of the request	I understand, but the time requirements on my contract 0 days. If she would like to disclose which property owner did have talked to the 2 adjacent property owners, so I know they. As far as Ms. Caddell and Mr. Garrison, there are two lots roperty. So the 2 adjacent property owners are aware of this.

952	Mr. Balfour -	You are talking about Edgefield Street owners, correct?
953 954	Mr. Walker -	Yes sir.
955 956 957	Mr. Balfour -	Those are the two lots you tried to buy?
958 959	Mr. Walker -	Correct.
960 961	Mr. Balfour -	Have you talked to the people across the street?
962 963 964 965	Mr. Walker - be sent to. There are only they are not abutting this p	I have not. I have a list of people that the notices needed to 3 people that we do not know if they received the notice. But property.
966 967 968	Mr. Wright - considered adjoining prope	There are at least 2 people across the street that would be erty owners.
969 970	Mr. Walker -	Do you send notices to people across the street?
971 972 973	Mr. Wright - across the street, behind the	Yes sir. They are sent to all the property around this lot, ne property.
974 975 976	Mr. Walker - notified, there is one on No	There appears to be 3 other property owners that need to be orth Road and Edgefield.
976 977 978	Mr. Kirkland -	Ms. McCowen, who was it that did not receive a notice?
979 980	Ms. McCowen - Edgefield. Across Edgefie	Mr. Robert Lee, and his property is on Hickory Tree and ld, there are about 6 or 7 homes.
981 982 983 984	Mr. Kirkland - that abut the property or a	Mr. Lee does not abut the property, we only contact those cross the street or alley way.
985 986	Mr. Balfour -	Do we want to proceed with the case?
987 988	Mr. McKinney -	How do we stand with these notices?
989 990 991 992 993 994	sending the notices, to th	The County sends the notices by first class mail. In this ed October 2. We changed the procedure from the applicant e County sending the notices, because we could do it a lot any applicants doing it incorrectly or not at all, we were having use of it.
994 995 996	Mr. McKinney - the worst post offices in the	Mr. Blankinship, The Richmond Post Office was voted one of ne country and I don't think the County should depend on the

997 Post Office and first class mail to get these notices to the public. If it is registered mail, 998 we know it gets to the property owners. 999 1000 Mr. Kirkland -Can we sent them certified mail? 1001 1002 Mr. Blankinship -We certainly can. 1003 1004 Mr. Balfour -Why don't we discuss that when we discuss the minutes? We need to decide if we are going to hear this case. 1005 1006 1007 If we pass this case over, can you make a phone call and Mr. Kirkland see if they would give you an extension? 1008 1009 1010 Mr. Walker -That is a possibility. As far as my time frame, it would be a detriment to me. There are other things I have in the works; if I get this variance, it 1011 would allow me to complete other things in a timely fashion. My preference is to get the 1012 1013 variance today. 1014 1015 Mr. Balfour -We have not even voted on the case yet. 1016 1017 Mr. Walker -Are we talking about abutting property owners or are we 1018 talking about people in the neighborhood? 1019 1020 Mr. Kirkland -Abutting property owners. 1021 1022 Mr. Walker -If that is the case, how do we know who did not get their 1023 notices? 1024 We don't know. We know that she got hers yesterday, and it 1025 Mr. Kirkland was mailed on the 2nd of October. 1026 1027 1028 Mr. Walker -Is it possible that before you decide, I can get some more 1029 feedback from her. 1030 1031 Mr. Balfour -Let's pass this by. 1032 1033 Jeffrey D. Boyea requests a variance from Section 24-94 of A -145-2001: Chapter 24 of the County Code to build a screened porch over the 1034 existing deck at 10045 Woodbaron Way (Coles Way) (Tax Parcel 1035 57-25-A-20), zoned R-3AC, One-family Residence District 1036 (Conditional)(Three Chopt). The rear yard setback is not met. The

1040 1041

1037

1038

1039

feet rear yard setback.

applicant has 30 feet rear yard setback, where the Code requires

35 feet rear yard setback. The applicant requests a variance of 5

1042	Mr. Balfour -	All who wish to speak on this case, please stand. W	ould you	
1043	raise your right hand and be sworn in.			
1044				
1045	Mr. Blankinship -	Do you swear the testimony that you are about to gi	ve is the	
1046	•	nothing but the truth, so help you God?		
1047	adai, aio miolo adai, dila	Thouming but are truent, so mosp you bear		
1048	Mr. Boyea -	I do. My name is Jeff Boyea, and I am requesting	a 5-foot	
1049	,	ce our existing deck with a screened porch.	u 0 100t	
1049	variance serback to replace	se our existing deak with a screened porch.		
1050	Mr. Wright -	What is to the rear of your property?		
1051	Wir. Wright -	what is to the real of your property!		
	Mr. Poyos	Common Aroa		
1053	Mr. Boyea -	Common Area.		
1054	N.A. NAA: ole t	M/le at its leaves et the atO		
1055	Mr. Wright -	What is beyond that?		
1056	M D	-		
1057	Mr. Boyea -	There is a new daycare center.		
1058				
1059	Mr. Wright -	Is there any open space back there?		
1060				
1061	Mr. Boyea -	It is wooded.		
1062				
1063	Mr. Balfour -	Any other questions of Mr. Boyea? Thank you.		
1064				
1065	After an advertised publi	c hearing and on a motion by Mr. Wright, seconded	d by Mr.	
1066	McKinney, the Board grain	nted application A-145-2001 for a variance to build a s	creened	
1067	porch over the existing de	ck at 10045 Woodbaron Way (Coles Way) (Tax Parce	el 57-25-	
1068	A-20). The Board granted	I the variance subject to the following condition:		
1069				
1070	 Only the improver 	nents shown on the plan filed with the application	may be	
1071	constructed pursuant to the	nis approval. No substantial changes or additions to the	ne layout	
1072	may be made without th	e approval of the Board of Zoning Appeals. Any a	dditional	
1073	improvements shall comp	ly with the applicable regulations of the County Code.		
1074	·	, , , ,		
1075	Affirmative: Balfo	ur, Kirkland, McKinney, Nunnally, Wright	5	
1076	Negative:	, · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	0	
1077	Absent:		0	
1078	7 1.5001111		· ·	
1079	The Board granted this re	quest, as it found from the evidence presented that, do	ie to the	
1079	•	the subject property, strict application of the Coun		
1080	•	dship not generally shared by other properties in the a	,	
1081		will neither cause a substantial detriment to adjacent		
1082		burpose of the zoning regulations.	property	
	noi materially impair the p	ourpose of the zorning regulations.		
1084				

Mr. Balfour -

(Testimony resumed on A-144-01)

1085

1086 1087

Mr. Walker, what did you find out?

1088			
1089	Mr. Walker -	I talked to the agent, and he is going to recommend	that the
1090	contract be extended, and	d Ms. McCowen and I discussed the plans for the ne	
1091	and she seems to be happ	·	
1092		,	
1093	Mr. Balfour -	You do have the right to extend the case for 30 days.	
1094	Will Balloan	Tou do have the right to extend the edge for de days.	
1095	Mr. Walker -	My preference would be to have the case decided to	dav
1096	Wii. Waitei	wy preference would be to have the case decided to	Juy.
1097	Mr. Balfour -	What is the pleasure of the Board?	
1098	Wii. Bailoui -	What is the pleasure of the board:	
1098	Mr. McKinney -	Let's hear from Ms. McCowen first.	
1100	Wii. Wickinney -	Let's fiear from ivis. McCowerr first.	
	Ma MaCawan	In talking to him, it is ak	
1101	Ms. McCowen -	In talking to him, it is ok.	
1102	Ma Dalfarra	Variable language and the construction O	
1103	Mr. Balfour -	You no longer oppose the construction?	
1104		NI.	
1105	Ms. McCowen -	No.	
1106			
1107	Mr. McKinney-	I would like to hear the case, as we do comply with	the law
1108	as far as the Secretary is	concerned.	
1109			
1110	Mr. Balfour -	If no one objects, we will take this case up in a few m	inutes.
1111			
1112		hearing and on a motion by Mr. McKinney, seconded	
1113		ted application A-144-2001 for a variance to build	
1114	family dwelling at 5413 Ed	lgefield Street (Chamberlayne Estates) (Tax Parcel 8ଶ	5-1-6-3).
1115	The Board granted the va	riance subject to the following conditions:	
1116			
1117	1. Only the improver	nents shown on the plan filed with the application	may be
1118	constructed pursuant to the	is approval. No substantial changes or additions to th	e layout
1119	may be made without th	e approval of the Board of Zoning Appeals. Any ac	dditional
1120	improvements shall comp	y with the applicable regulations of the County Code.	
1121	·	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	
1122	2. At the time of b	uilding permit application, the applicant shall sub	mit the
1123		he Department of Public Works to ensure compliance	
1124		apeake Bay Preservation Act and the code requirem	
1125	water quality standards.		
1126	mater quality starraurae.		
1127	3. Connections shall be	be made to public water and sewer.	
1127	o. Connections shall t	be made to public water and sewer.	
1129	Affirmative: Balfor	ur, Kirkland, McKinney, Nunnally, Wright	5
1130	Negative:	ar, rankana, moranney, riannany, vingni	0
1130	Absent:		0
	AUSCIII.		U
1132			

The Board granted this request, as it found from the evidence presented that, due to the unique circumstances of the subject property, strict application of the County Code would produce undue hardship not generally shared by other properties in the area, and authorizing this variance will neither cause a substantial detriment to adjacent property nor materially impair the purpose of the zoning regulations.

A -146-2001:

Page Imports, LC requests a variance from Section 24-104(I)(3) of Chapter 24 of the County Code to add a detached sign and additional square footage at 9001 West Broad St. (Tax Parcel 59-A-28), zoned B-3C, Business District (Conditional) (Three Chopt). The maximum sign area and number of freestanding signs are not met. The applicant has two detached signs totaling 180 square feet, where the Code permits one detached sign with a maximum area of 150 square feet. The applicant requests a variance to add an additional sign and 30 square feet of sign area.

1149 Mr. Blankinship - It has just been brought to my attention, that some of the material submitted by the applicant was not included in your packet.

1152 Mr. Balfour - We got a package from Hirschler Fleischer is there something more than that?

1155 Mr. Blankinship - So you did get everything.

Mr. Balfour - All who wish to speak on this case, please stand. Would you raise your right hand and be sworn in.

1160 Mr. Blankinship - Do you swear the testimony that you are about to give is the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth, so help you God?

Mr. Moore - I do. My name is Glenn Moore, I am here this morning on behalf of Page Imports, the owner of the property. I want to make sure that you did receive a letter with several attachments? Ok, great. We are requesting 2 variances, one with respect to the number of freestanding signs and one with respect to square footage of the signs.

Mr. Page operates a number of dealerships on West Broad Street. He would like to establish a body shop in the building in the rear of the property. This would be a separate business on the property. We feel that a separate business needs additional signage to identify the business. The zoning ordinance contemplates 2 businesses on the site and allows for both names to be on the sign if the square footage does not exceed a total of 150 square feet. The problem we have in this case with respect to the number of signs is that Mr. Page is going to be required by Volkswagen/Audi to have a separate sign by the requirements of the franchise agreement. He is going to be taking down the larger sign and replacing it with an Audi/Audi sign. We are asking for permission to have the second sign for the Body Shop.

I would submit to you that one reason for granting the variance request is the fact that
we are going to have 2 signs, we are going to reduce by 50 % the amount of
freestanding signage that is currently on the site. I think this is the goal of the Planning
Commission for West Broad Street. We are not reducing the number, but we are
reducing the amount of signage. I would also submit that Mr. Page acquired this
property in good faith and did not plan to have a separate business, The Body Shop. I
will happy to answer any questions that you have.

1188 Mr. Balfour - Any questions of Mr. Moore?

Mr. Wright - Where is this second sign going to be?

Mr. Moore - If you look at the site plan, on the right-hand side of the entrance there is the existing sign; the new sign for the Body Shop will be located on the left-hand side of the entrance. The conditions recommended by the Staff are fine.

Mr. Wright - That sign will look like the copy included in your packet?

1198 Mr. Moore - Yes sir.

1200 Mr. Balfour - Any further questions for Mr. Moore? Thank you.

After an advertised public hearing and on a motion by Mr. Wright, seconded by Mr. Kirkland, the Board **granted** application **A-146-2001** for a variance to add a detached sign and additional square footage at 9001 West Broad St. (Tax Parcel 59-A-28). The Board granted the variance subject to the following conditions:

1. Only the signs shown on the plan filed with the application may be constructed pursuant to this approval. No substantial changes or additions to the layout may be made without the approval of the Board of Zoning Appeals. Any additional improvements shall comply with the applicable regulations of the County Code.

2. At the time the second sign is erected, the existing nonconforming sign shall be replaced with a sign that conforms to the requirements of the County Code. The total area of freestanding signs on the property shall not exceed 180 square feet.

1216 Affirmative: Balfour, Kirkland, McKinney, Nunnally, Wright
1217 Negative:
1218 Absent:
0

The Board granted this request, as it found from the evidence presented that, due to the unique circumstances of the subject property, strict application of the County Code would produce undue hardship not generally shared by other properties in the area, and authorizing this variance will neither cause a substantial detriment to adjacent property nor materially impair the purpose of the zoning regulations.

1225			
1226 1227 1228 1229	-	r. Kirkland, seconded by Mr. McKinney, the Board approved March 22, 2001, Henrico County Board of Zoning Appeals	
1230 1231 1232 1233	Affirmative: Negative: Absent:		5 0 0
1234 1235 1236	•	ther business, and on a motion by Mr. McKinney, seconded by bard adjourned until November 15, 2001, at 9:00 am.	
1237		Daniel Balfour,	
1238		Chairman	
1239			
1240		Benjamin Blankinship, AICP	
1241		Secretary	
1242			